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1 PLAINTIFF 

2 4. The FTC is an independent agency of the United States Government 

3 created by statute. 15 U.S.C. §§ 41-58. The FTC enforces Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 

4 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), which prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices in or affecting 

5 commerce. The FTC also enforces the Telemarketing Act, 15 U.S.C. § 6101-6108. 

6 Pursuant to the Telemarketing Act, the FTC promulgated and enforces the TSR, 

7 16 C.F.R. Part 310, which prohibits deceptive and abusive telemarketing acts or 

8 practices. 

9 5. The FTC is authorized to initiate federal district cowt proceedings, by its 

10 own attorneys, to enjoin violations of the FTC Act and the TSR and to secure such 

11 equitable relief as may be appropriate 



1 9. Defendant AFB LLC is an Arizona limited liability company with its 

2 principal place of business at 3021 S. WoodruffCirc1e, Mesa, Arizona 85212. AFB LLC 

3 transacts or has transacted business in this district and throughout the United States. 

4 10. Defendant Western GPS LLC is an Arizona limited liability company with 

5· its principal place of business at 1935 E. Redmon Drive, Tempe, Arizona. Western GPS 

6 LLC transacts or has transacted business in this district and throughout the United States. 

7 11. Defendant Chris Ambrosia is the managing member of Ambrosia Web 

8 Design LLC and CAM Services Direct LLC, and is a manager of AFB LLC. At all times 

9 material to this Complaint, acting alone or in concert with others, he has formulated, 

10' directed, controlled, bad the authority to control, or participated in the acts and practices 

11 set forth in this Complaint. Defendant Chris Ambrosia resides in this district and, in 

12 connection with the matters alleged here, transacts or has transacted business in this 

13 district and throughout the United States. 

14 12. Defendant LeRoy Castine, also mown as Lee Castine, is a managing 

15 member of Concord Financial Advisors LLC, AFB LLC, and Western GPS LLC, and a 

16 manager of Ambrosia Web Design LLC. At all times material to this Complaint, acting 

17 alone or in concert with others, he has formulated, directed, controlled, had the authority 

18 to control, or participated in the acts and practices set forth in this Complaint. Defendant 

19 LeRoy Castine resides in this district and, in connection with the matters alleged here, 

20 transacts or has transacted business in this district and throughout the United States. 

21 13. Defendants Ambrosia Web Design LLC, Concord Financial Advisors LLC, 

22 CAM Services Direct LLC, AFB LLC, and Western GPS LLC (collectively, "Corporate 

23 Defendants") have operated as a common t h r o u g h o u a t 0 1 7 5  T c  2 2 . 2  0  - 3 6 c 2 3 3  T d 
 9 2 2  



1 each other1 s behalf. Because these Corporate Defendants have operated as a common 

2 enterprise, each of them is jointly and severally liable for the acts and practices alleged 

3 below. Defendants Chris Ambrosia and LeRoy Castine have formulated, directed, 

4 controlled, had the authority to control, or participated in the acts and practices of the 

5 Corporate Defendants that constitute the common enterprise. 

6 CONmdERCE 

7 14. At all times material to this Complaint, Defendants have maintained a 

8 substantial course of trade Complai
(to )T118 e n t e r p 1 2 u t e  6  

o t h e r 1  other1 



1 17. During the sales presentations, Defendants often claim to be affiliated with 

2 a U.S. government program. They tell consumers there is a federal stimulus program in 

3 place to help consumers get out of debt and that Defendants' credit card interest rate 

4 reduction services are part of the program. Defendants tell some consumers that they are 

5 part of or working with the u.s. government. 

6 18. Defendants' descriptions of the actual services they will provide to get the 

7 lower interest rate for consumers are inconsistent. Sometimes Defendants simply 

8 promise to lower consumers' rates without specifying how they will do it. In other 

9 instances, they specifically claim they will get new, lower interest rate credit cards for 

10 consumers and transfer consumers' existing balances to the new cards, without telling 

11 consumers whether Defendants will issue the new cards or third parties will issue them. 
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1 will charge the fee. Although some consumers understand that their credit cards will be 

2 charged immediately, many do not. 

3 20. After consumers agree to participate in the program, in many instances 

4 Defendants send forms that require consumers to list all of their credit card account 

5 information, as well as other sensitive personal information such as date of birth and 

6 Social Security Number. A Service Agreement is often included in the forms for 

7 consumers to sign. The Service Agreement repeats Defendants' guarantee that they will 

8 obtain a certain dollar savings for consumers or provide a full or partial refund. 

9 21. After consumers agree to Defendants' services, and Defendants charge their 

10 advance fee, Defendants often do not deliver on their promises. Consumers have great 

11 difficulty eVen contacting Defendants to check on their accounts. If Defendants provide 

12 any service at ail, they apply for third-party credit cards on behalf of consumers or initiate 

13 a three-way telephone call with consumers' credit card issuers and ask for an interest rate 

14 reduction. Often Defendants do not obtain any interest rate reduction for consumers 

15 using these methods. On the occasions when Defendants do obtain a lower interest rate, 

16 the lower rate is often not sufficient to produce the promised savings. 

17 22. In some instances, consumers try to cancel their .24611 1 Tf
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1 24. While telemarketing their services, Defendants, directly or through their 

2 agents or intermediaries, have made numerous calls to telephone numbers on the National 

3 Do Not Call Registry. In some instances, these calls are made by Defendants using 

4 Defendants' company names. In other instances, Defendants have used third-party 

5 telemarketers to contact consumers. The third-party telemarketers often use the name 

6 "Card Member Services" while interacting with consumers. Telemarketers using this 

7 name or similar names (e.g. "Card Services") and offering credit card interest rate 

8 reduction services have generated hundreds of thousands of Do Not Call complaints 

9 across the United States. 

10 25. Further, Defendants, directly or through their agents or intermediaries, have 

11 IDitiated numerous telemarketing calls using a service that delivers prerecorded voice 

12 messages, known as "voice broadcasting" or "robocalling." The prerecorded messages 

13 direct consumers to press a number on their telephone if they are interested in obtaining 

14 lower credit card interest rates. Consumers often receive many robocalls before they 

15 decide to speak to a representative. Defendants initiate these robocalls to consumers even 

16 though consumers have not agreed in writing to receive these robocalls from Defendants. 

17 VIOLATIONS OF THE FTC ACT 

18 26. Section 5ea) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a), prohibits "unfair or 

19 deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce." 

20 27. Misrepresentations or deceptive omissions of material fact constitute 

21 deceptive acts or practices prohibited by Section 5( a) of the FTC Act. 

22 28. Acts or practices are unfair under Section 5 of the FTC Act if they cause 

23 substantial injury to consumers that consumers cannot reasonably avoid themselves and 

24 that is not outweighed by countervailing benefits to consumers or competition. 15 U.S.C. 

25 § 45(n). 

26 

27 

28 
g 



1 COUNT ONE 

2 Misrepresenting Material Facts 

3 29. In numerous instances, in connection with the advertising, marketing, 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

promotion, offering 



'. 

1 full or partial refunds when consumers do not receive the guaranteed credit card interest 

2 rate reduction or dollar savings. 

3 34. Therefore, Defendants' representation as set forth in Paragraph 32 above is 

4 false and misleading and constitutes a deceptive act or practice in violation of Section 

5 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). 

6 COUNT THREE 

7 Misrepresenting Affiliation with a Government Entity 

8 35. In numerous instances, in connection with the advertising, marketing, 

9 promotion, offering for sale, or sale of credit card interest rate reduction services, 

10 Defendants have represented, directly or indirectly, expressly or by implication, that they 

11 are carrying out a government program or are otherwise affiliated with the United States 

12 government. 

l3 36. In truth and in fact, Defendants are not carrying out a government program 

14 and are not affiliated with the United States government. 

15 37. Therefore, Defendants' representations as set forth in 'paragraph 35 above 

16 are false and misleading and constitute deceptive acts or practices in violation of Section 

17 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 45(a). 

18 COUNT FOUR 

19 Unauthorized Billing 

20 38. In numerous instances, Defendants have caused billing information to be 

21 submitted for payment without having obtained previously consumers' express informed 

22 consent. 

23 39. Defendants' actions cause or are likely to cause substantial injury to 

24 consumers that consumers cannot reasonably avoid themselves and that is not 

25 outweighed by countervailing benefits to consumers or competition. 

26 

27 

28 
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1 40. Therefore, Defendants' practice as described in Paragraph 38 above 

2 constitutes an unfair act oir 



1 46. As amended, effective September 27,2010, the TSRprohibits sellers and 

2 telemarketers 
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1 56. As amended, effective September I, 



1 59. Defendants' acts and practices, as described in Paragraph 58 above, are 

2 deceptive telemarketing acts or practices that violate the TSR, 16 C.F.R. §310.3(a)(2)(ili). 

3 COUNT SIX 

4 Misrepresenting Debt Relief Service in Violation of the TSR 

5 60. Innumerous instances on or after September 27,2010, in connection with 

6 the telemarketing of debt relief services, Defendants have misrepresented, directly or by 

7 implication, material aspects of the debt relief services, including, but not limited to, that: 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

a. 

b. 

Consumers who purchase Defendants' credit card interest rate reduction 

services will receive a low rate credit card or have their credit card interest 

rates reduced substantially; and 

Consumers who purchase Defendants' credit card interest rate reduction 

services will save thousands of dollars as a result of lowered credit card 

13 interest rates. 

14 61. Defendants' acts and practices, as described in Paragraph 60 above, are 

15 deceptive telemarketing acts or practices that violate the TSR, 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(2)(x). 

16 COUNT SEVEN 

17 Misrepresenting Refund Policy in Violation of the TSR 

18 62. In numerous instances, in the course of telemarketing goods and services, 

19 Defendants have misrepresented, directly or by implication, that Defendants will provide 

20 full or partial refunds if consumers do not achieve the guaranteed interest rate reductions 

21 or interest savings. 

22 63. Defendants' acts and practices, as described in Paragraph 62 above, are 

23 deceptive telemarketing acts or practices that violate the TSR, 16 C.F.R. §310.3(a)(2)(iv). 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 
15 



1 COUNT EIGHT 

2 Failing to Disclose No-Refund, No-Cancellation Policy in Violation of the TSR 

3 64. In numerous instances, in the course of telemarketing goods and services, 

4 Defendants have failed to disclose to consumers that Defendants have a policy of not 

5 making refunds or allowing cancellations. 

6 65. Defendants' acts and practices, as described in Paragraph 64 above, are 

7 deceptive telemarketing acts or practices that violate the TSR, 16 C.F.R. 

8 § 310.3(a)(1)(Ui). 

9 COUNTNThffi 

10 Misrepresenting Affiliation with a Government Entity in Violation of the TSR 

11 66. In numerous instances, in the course of telemarketing goods and services, 

12 Defendants have misrepresented, directly or by implication, that they are carrying out a 

13 government program or are otherwise affiliated with the United States government. . 

14 67. Defendants' acts or practices, as described in Paragraph 66 above, are 

15 deceptive telemarketing practices that violate the TSR, 16 C.F.R. § 310.3(a)(2)(vii). 

16 COUNT TEN 

17 Charging or Receiving a Fee in Advance of Obtaining a New, 

18 Lower Interest Credit Card in Violation of the TSR 

19 68. In numerous instances, in the course of telemarketing goods and services, 

20 Defendants have requested or received payment of a fee or consideration 



1 COUNT ELEVEN 

2 Charging or Receiving a Fee In Advance of Providing Debt Relief Services 

3 In Violation of the TSR 

4 70. In numerous instances on or after October 27, 2010, in the course of 

5 telemarketing debt relief services, Defendants have requested or received payment of a 

6 fee or consideration for a debt relief service before: (a) they have renegotiated, settled, 

7 reduced, or otherwise altered the tenns of at least one debt pursuant to a settlement 

8 agreement, debt management plan, or other such valid contractual agreement executed by 

9 the customer; and (b) the customer has made at least one payment pursuant to that 

10 agreement. 

11 71. Defendants' acts or practices, as described in Paragraph 70 above, are 

12 abusive telemarketing acts or practices that violate the TSR, 16 C.F.R. § 310.4(a)(5)(i). 

13 COUNT TWELVE 

14 Unauthorized Billing in Violation of the TSR 

15 72. In numerous instances, in the course of telemarketing goods and services, 

16 Defendants have caused billing information to be submitted for payment without the 

17 express informed consent of the consumer. 

18 73. Defendants' acts or practices, as described in Paragraph 72 above, are 

19 abusive telemarketing acts or practices that violate the TSR, 16 C.F.R. § 31 0.4( a)(7). 

20 COUNT THIRTEEN 

21 Violating the National Do Not Call Registry in Violation of the TSR 

22 74. Innumerous instances, in connection with telemarketing, Defendants have 

23 engaged, or caused a telemarketer to engage, in initiating an outbound telephone call to a 

24 person's telephone number on the National Do Not Call Registry in violation of the TSR, 

25 16 C.F.R. § 31O.4(b)(1)(iii)(B). 

26 

27 

28 
17 



1 COUNT FOURTEEN 

2 Initiating Unlawful Prerecorded Messages On or After September 1, 2009 

3 In Violation of the TSR 

4 75. In numerous instances on or after September 1, 2009, Defendants have 

5 made, or caused others to make, outbound telephone calls that deliver prerecorded 

6 messages to induce the purchase of goods or services in violation of the TSR, 16 C.F.R. 

7 § 310.4(b)(1)(v). 

8 CONSUMER INJURY 

9 76. Consumers have suffered and will continue to suffer substantial injury as a 

10 result of Defendants' violations of the FTC Act and the TSR. In addition, Defendants 

11 have been unjustly enriched as a result Septembe27Tj
0.0118lawfu.688 0 Td04to 
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